From: Kim Sanders

To: David Mountfort

Subject: Fwd: Cornerstone Church, Rolleston

Date: Tuesday, 12 December 2023 10:46:38 PM

Attachments: CORNERSTONE CHURCH Siteworks Plans R3 20231121.pdf

CORNERSTONE CHURCH PS1 and Siteworks Design Report 20230330.pdf

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: kimsanders@xtra.co.nz

Date: 29 November 2023 at 10:28:00 AM NZDT

To: David Mountfort <david@mountfortplanning.co.nz>
Cc: Vern Marais <vern(@macon.net.nz>

Subject: RE: Cornerstone Church, Rolleston

Hi David, in response to your email, | have assessed the project under Rules EW-R1
and EW-R2 and report the following. Please note any reference to plans should be
the attached R(Release)3 plans. | have also attached the design report which
includes earthworks volumes.

EW-R1. The project requires a building consent (BC), therefore any earthworks
within 2m of the building are allowed. The point to note here is whether planners
accept that the BC includes the external carparks (these are being assessed by the
BC) “as the exterior wall of the building”. Assuming they do not, | move on to EW-
R2.

EW-R2. Assuming this rule needs to be assessed under EW-R1 (EW-R5A & GRUZ-
R21 do not apply):

e EW-REQI, the volume for this project exceeds the maximum volume for a
Residential zone of 150m3. Whilst this rule requirement is exceeded, it is
entirely normal for a project/building of this size and the proposed
earthworks are all proposed to be in a controlled manner, similar to for
example would occur on a subdivision (note this project is not a subdivision).

e EW-REQ2, the proposed earthworks are not on land with a slope of greater
than 1in 4.

e EW-REQ3.1, the only earthworks deeper than 0.5m when close to a
neighbour or 2m when not close to the neighbours will be to install drainage
or kerbs. This would conclude that provided the work is carried out and
backfilled in accordance with plans and specifications there will be zero
effect on the neighbours land.

e EW-REQ3.2, the very minor contaminated soil found on this site is allowed to
be kept on this site and the location for its spreading is proposed to be a
distance away from the boundary (see engineering plans).

e EW-REQ3.3,if 3.1 & 3.2 are deemed non complying, the following is my
assessment:
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SEWER & STORMWATER
1. THE SURVEY IS IN TERMS OF GEODETIC DATUM NOTES::
2000, MT PLEASANT CIRCUIT. THE ORIGIN OF
4 1. ALL WORKS IN A( RDANCE WITH SD DE OF PRACTICE PARTS 1-11
COORDINATES MN 4 DP529571 (F5LX) ORKS oco C! SDC CODE Of CTiC s

~797469.30mN 373386.26mE
2. LEVELS ARE IN TERMS OF THE LYTTELTON

2.
VERTICAL DATUM 1937 PRIOR TO THE CANTERBURY

EARTHQUAKES, ORIGIN OF LEVELS MN4 DP529571
RL = 43.41m, SOURCED AND ADJUSTED FROM LINZ
DATABASE
3. CONTRACTOR IS TO LOCATE AND PROTECT ALL
EXISTING SERVICES PRIOR TO COMMENCING ANY
WORKS. NO EXCAVATION OF ANY KIND IS TO TAKE
PLACE WITHOUT PERMISSION FROM THE RELEVANT
SERVICE PROVIDER.
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1. ALL WORKS IN ACCORDANCE WITH SDC CODE OF PRACTICE PARTS 1-11

STANDARDS, IF STANDARDS ARE UNSPECIFIED REFER TO CCC CSS PARTS 1-7.

Ealiad

STANDARDS, IF STANDARDS ARE UNSPECIFIED REFER TO CCC CSS PARTS
1-7.

ALL PLANS ARE TO BE READ AND DISTRIBUTED AS A COMPLETE SET. ANY
DISCREPANCIES ARE TO BE BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF THE
ENGINEER FOR CLARIFICATION.

ALL SERVICES TO BE FULLY SEARCHED AND PILOTED PRIOR TO TRENCHING
ALL UPVC PIPES (WHETHER SEWER OR STORMWATER) SHALL CONFORM TO
AS NZS 1260:1999 AND SHALL HAVE THE FOLLOWING STIFFNESS NUMBERS

AS SET OUT IN THE STANDARD: DN 100 AND 150...SN16: DN225 AND LARGER ...

SN8.
REFER TO LONGSECTIONS FOR ALL SEWER LEVELS.

ALL SEWER AND STORMWATER LATERALS TO BE LAID AT 1:100. MINIMUM
GRADE .

NOMINATED PIPE SIZES ARE INTERNAL DIAMETER UNLESS NOTED
OTHERWISE.

BEDDING TO BE AS PER SD344 UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED.

2. ALL PLANS ARE TO BE READ AND DISTRIBUTED AS A COMPLETE SET. ANY WHEN B
DISCREPANCIES ARE TO BE BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF THE ENGINEER FOFHE BD OUNDARY L g
CLARIFICATION.
3. CARRIAGEWAY AND FOOTPATH ACCEPTANCE TESTING IN ACCORDANCE WITH Y. HE], GH EVELP@ SO ™ A
CCC CSS PART 6 AND CCC IDS WITH SPECIAL NOTE TO THE FOLLOWING: LEG’EQB Top 42 S0R UTH BOUND NE
31.  KERB & CHANNEL BASECOURSE TESTING BY NUCLEAR DENSOMETER - L AR IS, D
MINIMUM DRY DENSITY OF 2100kg/m® WITH 75% EQUAL OR EXCEEDING FENCELINE FIRE HYDRANT
2150kg/m?.
32, CUTDOWNS AT THE TWO GOULDS ROAD ENTRANCE & EXIT TO HAVE 280mm EDGE OF FOOTPATH DI VALVE )
OF CONCRETE WITH REINFORCEMENT AS PER SD611. N S O Q,
33.  METAL DEPTHS TO BE CONFIRMED OR INCREASED PRIOR TO -——-  EDGEOF SEAL "M Mobility Carpark R la D)
COMMENCEMENT OF WORK FOLLOWING THE CHECKING OF SUBGRADE CBR .
ON SITE. THE SUBGRADE IS EXPECTED TO BE PRE-ROLLED AFTER CHANNEL =>  Secondary Flow Path S D
EXCAVATION AND PRIOR TO INSPECTION. —— Direction of Slope for Pavement m T
34. CARPARK BASECOURSE TESTING INCLUDING GOULDS ROAD ENTRANCES - ——  TOPOF KERB or Kerbs .
MAXIMUM BENKELMAN BEAM DEFLECTION OF 2.00mm WITH 95% BELOW K427 PROPOSED KERBTOP O ~ S
1.5mm FORALL ASPHALT PAVED AREAS (AVERAGE 1.6mm). TELECOMMUNICATIONS [¢D) ~H
35.  ALL CARPARK AND FOOTPATH AREAS TO BE SURFACED USING ASPHALTIC $4267 PROPOSED SEALLEVEL gy Lo
CONCRETE. FOOTPATHS TO BE CONSTRUCTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH SDC Ll O LD
REQUIREMENTS WITH 20mm DEPTH AC, WHILE CARPARK PAVEMENTS TO BE N
PAVER LAID 30mm AC10 (WITH CHIP SEAL WATERPROOFING MEMBRANE). A ====  STORMWATER 'Ql e} S
PRE-SEAL INSPECTION IS REQUIRED FOLLOWING BENKELMAN BEAM TEST. O N
36.  ALL PAVEMENT CROSSFALLS ARE GENERALLY 2%. IF DESIGN CROSSFALLS ————  WATER N ™~
ARE IN DOUBT CONTACT THE ENGINEER. Q( g
ALL ANGLED CARPARKS ARE 60 DEGREES. =——  PRIMARY BOUNDARIES ~
ALL BERMS TO BE AND COVERED WITH A MINIMUM OF 150mm GRADE 1 TOPSOIL
AND GRASSED WITH COUNCIL BERM MIX. ADJACENT
ELECTRICITY & TELECOM SERVICES NOT SHOWN. REFER TO ELECTRICAL & BOUNDARIES
COMMUNICATION PLANS FOR DUCT LOCATIONS. ®
FOOTPATH BASECOURSE TESTING (IF COUNCIL AGREE TO RECONSTRUCT POWER POLE
GOULDS ROAD)- MINIMUM CLEGG HAMMER VALUE OF 25 REQUIRED FOR Sewer manhole SS2A added
FOOTPATHS & RESIDENTIAL CROSSINGS. MINIMUM CLEGG HAMMER VALUE OF 35 SS MANHOLE Amendments: Carparks to suit traffic. report
REQUIRED FOR COMMERCIAL CROSSINGS. MAJOR CONTOUR
-
SEWER, CARPARK DIMENSION Date:  03/23
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TOPOGRAPHICAL SURVEY & Designed: K.S. |— -
EARTHWORKS PLAN 3
999 GOULDS ROAD, ROLLESTON (oo ks |CC /1

OVERALL

1)  ALL WORKS IN ACCORDANCE WITH SDC CODE OF PRACTICE PARTS 1-11
STANDARDS, IF STANDARDS ARE UNSPECIFIED REFER TO CCC CSS PARTS

2

3

EXISTING SERVICES HAVE BEEN DIGITISED FROM SERVICE AUTHORITY
PLANS; COMPLETENESS AND ACCURACY ARE NOT GUARANTEED. ALL
SERVICES TO BE FULLY SEARCHED & PILOTED PRIOR TO TRENCHING.
TRENCHING & INSTALLATION OF POWER & TELECOM SERVICES TO BE
PROVIDED IN ACCORDANCE WITH SERVICE PROVIDERS PLANS &
SPECIFICATIONS.
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ATER

1. NO WATER SUPPLY WORKS ARE SHOWN ON THESE SITE PLANS. REFER TO
ARCHITECTS PLANS FOR PLUMBING AND FIRE/SPRINKLER PLANS FOR FIRE.

ANY WATERS WORKS CARRIED OUT ON SITE SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE

WITH SDC CODE OF PRACTICE PARTS 1-11 STANDARDS, IF STANDARDS ARE

UNSPECIFIED REFER TO CCC CSS PARTS 1-7.

CONTRACTOR TO INSTALL WATER MAIN TO ENSURE NO CLASHES WITH

OTHER SERVICES. TO BE INSTALLED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE IDS 7.9.5.
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1-7.
ELECTRICITY & TELECOM SERVICES NOT SHOWN. REFER TO ELECTRICAL /
TELECOM STREETLIGHT RETICULATION PLANS FOR RELEVANT DETAILS.

ANY INSTRUCTION FROM COUNCIL OR ANY OTHER AUTHORITY IS TO BE
CONFIRMED WITH THE ENGINEER.
6) DRAWINGS TO BE DISTRIBUTED AND READ AS A COMPLETE SET. ANY
DISCREPANCIES ARE TO BE BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF THE I
ENGINEER FOR CLARIFICATION .
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CONFIRMED WITH THE ENGINEER.
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Kim Sanders Consulting
30 Clark Street

Sumner

Christchurch

9 March 2023
Cornerstone Rolleston Trust
c/- Vern Marais
Macon
vern@macon.net.nz
Christchurch

Dear Sir
Re: CORNERSTONE CHURCH, 999 GOULDS ROAD — CIVIL SITEWORKS DESIGN
PRODUCER STATEMENT - PS1

I hereby certify, as siteworks design engineer for this project, that:

1. We have been engaged by Cornerstone Rolleston Trust to provide Civil Siteworks Design for
the Cornerstone Church Project.

2. In respect of the requirements of the Clauses of the Building Code, this PS1 is for part only of
the building work in the project’s Building Consent application.

3. The proposed building work covered by this Producer Statement is specifically detailed in the
attached Design Report for Civil Siteworks, which includes plans, specification and Erosion &
Sediment Control Plan (ESCP). The work combines a combination of best practice design
standards, including the Building Code, the Selwyn District Councils Engineering Code of
Practice and any other standard referred to in the Specification. This is appropriate because
this project is a large commercial build in a residential zone. No one standard or code is
appropriate for the civil works on this build.

4. The civil siteworks, if constructed in accordance with the drawings, specifications and ESCP,
will comply with the relevant provisions of the building code.

5. I have the necessary competancy, experience and reputation within Selwyn District Council to
undertake this design.

6. | recommend the CML1 level of construction monitoring.
This Producer Statement has been issued in accordance with the requirements and conditions contained

within Council’s building consent and engineering approval for this project. If you have any queries
please telephone the writer.

ders Consulting
ENGINEER

NZCE (Civil)

REA, Reg No. 4692

For Subdivision Planning, Engineering & Construction Services
0272 342285 kimsanders@xira.co.nz
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FOR
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Design Report for Civil Siteworks
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Kim Sanders Consulting

Engineer

For Subdivision Planning, Engineering & Construction Services
30 Clark Street

Sumner

Christchurch

0272 342285

kimsanders@xtra.co.nz
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1. INTRODUCTION

This civil siteworks design report provides the substance to the accompanying PS1 Design Certificate. It addresses
all aspects of the civil engineering construction siteworks necessary to service and provide access to the proposed
Church development at 999 Goulds Road.

The site is located off 999 Goulds Road, Rolleston. The Siteworks plans & specification are included in Appendix C
The Erosion & Sediment Control Plan (including & aerial photo) for construction phase is included in Appendix D.

The legal description of the land is:

Street Address: 999 Goulds Road
Legal Description: Lots 19/20/21 DP7589
Total Land Area: 1.2138

The site is presently used as a rural lifestyle lot, with an existing dwelling and some associated ancillary buildings.

The topography of the site is generally flat and falls gently towards the southeast. The northern & west bdy is
lower than adjacent land. Therefore property along the west and north bdy will not be at risk of overland flows
from this block. The south boundary is protected by a proposed kerb, meaning no stormwater from this project
will get into the land to the south.

The civil engineering siteworks design is complete and is attached to this report ready for to SDC for approval.

All construction of the various infrastructure elements related to this project will be in accordance with recognised
practice in particular the Selwyn District Council Code of Practice and Environment Canterbury Guidelines.

2. ACCESS ROAD & CARPARK LAYOUTS

The project which has frontage to Goulds Road, has the main entrance at the northern end of the property. This fits
with the building (Church) which has its main entrance on the northern elevation.

Whilst vehicles could enter and exit from this entrance, it has been decided the exit will be via the crossing being
created at the south end of the road frontage. It means that generally the traffic flow will be one way, and once
entering the site the exit will be either along the front (east) of the building or along the rear (west) and out to the
southern exit.

Carparking is generally 90 degree right angle parking. Traffic can flow either way but will be directed towards the exit.
There are a total of 120 carparks, including three mobility carparks which are 3.6m wide.

Signage and spraymarking will be placed to direct traffic. Carparks will be spray marked, including the mobility parks.

As part of the overall Church project, lighting for both the access lanes and carparks will be installed if deemed
necessary.

3. EARTHWORKS

3.1. Site Soils - Geotechnical

The Geotech report carried out by Terraforma has addressed soil conditions and extreme stormwater flows. A
further point to note is any extreme 200 year event will be contained by the secondary flow path.
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All buildings and carparks are to be graded towards onsite kerbs which have a minimum grade of 1 in 500 falling
to three onsite soakpits. Any storm above 50 year return period may enter the secondary flow path which is via
access roads towards each entrance/exit and then down Goulds Road. The secondary flow paths are marked with
arrows on Sheet 2 of the plans.

Soil on the site typically consists of approximately 300mm depth of topsoil overlying gravels and minor silts. The
depth to water table is at least 5m below ground level.

3.2. Soil Contamination

The minor contamination found in the soil by FRASER THOMAS LTD which was “slightly above background
guideline” is identified on the plans in blue hatching. This topsoil will be removed first and “left on site” to be used as
topsoil spread on the back land fill area. That will mean any other topsoil removed off site has been cleared as “ not
likely to be contaminated” and therefore does not have to go to a Cleanfill site.

If any further soils are found that appear to be above the human health SCS for the proposed land use will be excavated
and removed from the site (if required) and validated by at FRASER THOMAS LTD (contact Sean Finnigan). Note, this
is unlikely.

3.3. Earthworks Construction

It is the intention to confine as much “construction phase stormwater” as possible to remain onsite (see the
accompanying ESC Plan). Once the topsaoil is stripped, temporary soakholes (see ESC plan) will be setup to restrict
stormwater to the new access lanes (surrounding the building) which will then easily allow all sediment laden
water to be directed to the stormwater facility and sediment control areas marked on the ESC plan. Bunding and
ramped entrances are proposed along the front eastern boundary (and part on the south bdy where deemed
necessary) to restrict any construction water exiting the site.

All topsoil on site will be stockpiled and replaced on the land immediately following bulk earthworks. The first topsoil

III

to be removed will be the “slightly above background guidelines soil” identified on the plans in blue hatching and

mentioned in 3.2 above.

All disturbed topsoil will be re-sown with Selwyn District Council specified grass seed mixes. A small amount of cut
material is expected to be generated and the remainder fill will be imported in the form of gravels for under the
building slab and carpark metalcourses.

The volumes from the 7500m2 of building/carpark area and the 900m2 of back land fill area are expected to be as
follows:
e Topsoil off @ 300mm = 2520m3 (potentially 1500m3 will be sold and removed from site).
e  Cut material from building/carpark to fill the back land area = 550 to 600m3.
e Under slab gravel at 300mm = 498m3
e Extra gravel under slab. Bottom of soil is 700mm below slab. Structural calls for 300mm, therefore an extra
100mm = 166m3 extra
e Imported gravels for paving 5837m2 at average 300mm depth 1751m3.
e  Extra gravel surrounding building where bottom of soil is an average of 30mm below the 300mm gravel layer.
Extra gravel = 65m3.
e Respread soils on back land area and berms 1020m3.

Sediment flow off the site will be controlled according to Regional Council guidelines and the accompanying ESC Plan.
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All dust created on the site will be controlled by irrigation, water cart, dust suppression fencing or other such Council
approved methods and construction methodologies.

All bulk filling will be compacted in accordance with NZS 4431:1989 and certified by the geotechnical engineer
Terraforma. All fill testing will be carried out by an independent laboratory.

4% ACCESS ROADING & CARPARK CONSTRUCTION

The existing Goulds Road kerbs only extend to about one third of the property frontage at the north end. SDC should
be required to pay for that construction work, or alternatively it could be paid for by the project in lieu of any
development contributions which may become due if the property ever subdivides in the future. Further discussions
with SDC are needed to reach agreement on this. A typical section of the Goulds Road Reconstruction is included on
the plans, assuming agreement is reached on SDC paying for it.

Two commercial heavy duty crossings shall be constructed from the road kerb to the property boundary.

The access roads and carparks mentioned in 2 above, shall be kerbed in the form of the SDC mountable kerb and
channel (noted on plans as K&C) around the perimeter of the paving and also in the back carparks, which all slope at
1in500 minimum towards the sumps and soakpits. The building will be surrounded on the west, north & east sides by
Kerb Only which is set 100mm higher than asphalt levels. The west edge of the back carparks is defined by a Kerb Only
which is “flush” with the asphalt levels. This allows an extra 5m bay of carparks to be added should the Church decide
they need an extra 16 parks.

The metalcourses shall be 300mm deep, comprising 100 M/4 AP40 on 200mm AP65. This assumes a CBR of the
subgrade of 6, and is based on a normal residential street model which requires 300mm of metal. Note, it is expected
that whilst the Geotech Report tested CBRs at 3 to 6, it is expected (and the Geotech engineer agrees with this) that
once the exposed subgrade gravels are trimmed and rolled, the CBR will improve to over 6. Furthermore when the
300 metalcourse is placed on top it will confine the subgrade thereby improving it even more.

All sealed areas shall be machine laid AP10 in accordance with NZTA M10 and the accompanying plans and
specification.

All roading works will be constructed to approved engineering drawings and relevant Council specifications.

Testing of kerb base shall be by Nuclear Densometer where the required reading is 2150kg/m3. Testing of the
metalcourse prior to asphalting is to be by Benkleman Beam test where the 95%ile needs to be 1.5mm (average
1.6mm).

5. SEWER

After consultation with SDC it was found that the future extension of Rupert Street would “just” provide a suitable
gravity sewer. The Cornerstone Church have spoken to the owner of the land at 626 East Maddisons Road and
agreement has been reached that their development will install the sewer to Manhole SS2, which SDC agreed to
be left 4.5m short of their northern boundary so that SS2 was in the right place for the Church project to connect
to. SS2 to SS3 will be a 150mm uPVC SN16 and it extends to where the Church laterals exit the building.
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Two 100mm uPVC SN16 laterals are proposed to extend from Manhole SS3 into the church where they will easily
service 14 WCs, 2 showers, various hand basins, and two large kitchen sinks. Two extra junctions will be installed
on the 150mm main for future use if the property’s back land is developed.

The sewerage system will be constructed to Council standards and Council need to decide whether the 150mm is
to be vested in their name. If not, the main is accepted to be maintained by the owners.

6. WATER RETICULATION

No water supply works are shown on the plans. Refer to the architects plans for plumbing requirements and to
the fire irrigation plans which will feed into the building and connect SDC meter at the appropriate place.

7. STORMWATER RETICULATION AND DRAINAGE

7.1. General

Roof stormwater for this Residential zoned land is to be disposed of directly to ground via soak pits in accordance
with the Building Act, and constructed as part of the Building Consent process. As this project is larger than normal
residential allotments, we have applied normal subdivision rules and standards to design the stormwater from the
large roof area (1663m2) and carparks (5663m2). The difference here as compared to normal residential, is we
need to use the appropriate stormwater impermeability coefficient which needs to be higher at 90% due to the
larger percentage of impermeable areas (this project has mostly asphalt and rooves).

The roof downpipes will be piped directly to the sump nearest the adjacent soakpit. All other stormwater
emanating from access roads, carparks and berms will be collected by kerbs which flow towards sumps and pipes
to the soakpits. There will be 3 soakpits, which are strategically located to collect the 150mm pipes (uPVC SN16)
from the roof downpipes. Soakpit #1 & 2 are large soakpits at 12mx2m and 13mx3m respectively. Soakpit #3 is
smaller at 5mx2m. These soakpits are all proposed to be the same as any soakpit on a SDC approved Rolleston
subdivision (see detail on Sheet 3)

All roading stormwater infrastructure has been designed to meet both regional and local council standards using
Selwyn District Councils specified rainfall intensities. These will accommodate flows off the rooves and access
roads up to a 2% AEP critical duration event. This has been calculated as the flows generated by a 2% AEP critical
duration event and is included in this report as Appendix E.

The site has been designed to ensure that secondary overflow path for storm events greater than 2% AEP will
drain via the access roads. Once any secondary flow gets to Goulds Road, the flow is towards the south along the
road kerb.

The existing network of ground shape/surface flows has been investigated off the SDC Lidar to ensure the roading
network, and therefore stormwater system for the development, will pick up all existing surface flows and direct
them onto the secondary flow path in the roads. This has been reported and confirmed by the Terraforma
Geotechnical Report

7.2. Design Specifics and Soakage Rates

On site testing for each Soakpit will need to be confirmed at the time of installation. The local soakage rates in
Rolleston are consistently high at about 4000 to 6000mm per hour. A factor of safety of 3 is normally applied to
this soakage rate for design purposes. In any event SDC require 2000mm/hour to be the maximum rate used and
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that has been used for these soakpit sizes (see calculation sheet Appendix E). Design calculations using a 2% AEP
storm intensity and an analysis of the critical event duration have been used to size each soakpit.

Due to the soakage results obtained in the neighbouring developments and the consistency of soil profiles across
the site we believe the soakage rates suit the proposed disposal mechanism. If soakage rate tests are found to be
less, then the soakpits will need to be lengthened (unlikely but a suitable solution).

The infrastructure proposed will be constructed in accordance with recognised practice including the Selwyn
District Council Code of Practice and the CCC Construction standard specifications.

All rainfall events have been adjusted by 1.03, the local adjustment coefficient for Rolleston and by 1.16, the
allowance for climate change factor as required by the SDC code of practice. A combined run-off coefficient of
0.65 has been adopted to determine the 2% AEP runoff volume for the catchment area of each soakpit in
accordance with SDC requirements.

8. SERVICES

Power (Orion) and Telecommunications (Enable) will be provided to the site from Goulds Road. Private cables will
be laid underground.

9. CONCLUSION

This report has addressed the servicing of the proposed building (Church) and adjacent carparking and access
roads.

All services including earthworks, carpark and access construction, sewer, stormwater disposal, water supply,
power and telecommunications, will be to the same standard as the current development areas of Rolleston, using
methodologies and proposals based on standard engineering practice and the Councils Infrastructure Design
Standards.

On the basis of our investigations, we have concluded that the infrastructure proposed for this development is
sufficient to meet all servicing requirements.
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APPENDIX A: CHURCH PERSPECTIVE

Proposed Church
LOT: 2222 DP: 229222222222 222 223222

ISSUE A/

APPENDIX B: Aerial Plan (with design)
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APPENDIX C Siteworks Plans & Specification (see separate computer file)

APPENDIX D Erosion and Sediment Control Plan (see separate computer file)
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e EW-REQ3.4:

o a.there is minimal potential for adverse effects from the earthworks
as the proposal has had regards carrying out the earthworks in a
controlled manner;

o b. there will be no stability or erosion issues to the adjacent land;

o c.the land is not being altered majorly;

o d.there is no potential for land contamination as any imported gravels
and soils will be from certified suppliers (note, the minor
contaminated existing soil is below guideline);

o e.the proposed stormwater system uses best practice methods
commonly adopted in Rolleston, and the drainage pattern for this
proposal directs secondary storm water flows towards Goulds Road
via internal kerbing (this is also a best practice method accepted
under the SDC Engineering Code of Practice);

o f& g.any fill will be compacted in accordance with standards
appropriate to the material in use, which that material will be
appropriate to it’s specific use at the time (for example, earthfilling
with silts or carpark construction with gravels).

| trust this assesses the rules correctly. Please contact me if you have any queries.
Kim

Kim Sanders Consulting
Engineer

For Subdivision Planning, Engineering & Construction Services

30 Clark Street
Sumner

Christchurch

0272 342285
kimsanders@xtra.co.nz

From: David Mountfort <david@mountfortplanning.co.nz>
Sent: Monday, November 27, 2023 3:55 PM

To: Kim Sanders <kimsanders@xtra.co.nz>

Subject: Cornerstone Church, Rolleston

Hi Kim,

Previously you assisted with the site layout and design for this project, which was at
that time being assessed under the then operative district plan.

The project has been held up for other reasons, and the operative district plan has
now been largely replaced by the proposed Plan Review, most of which is now
deemed to be operative, including the earthworks rules. We know that a resource
consent will be required for several aspects, but we need to identify any other non-
compliances. Would you be in a position to reassess the plans for compliance with


mailto:kimsanders@xtra.co.nz

the new earthworks rules? This is purely for the purpose of identifying whether or
not the proposal complies. | think we have a very satisfactory layout after the
previous work, so if for any non-compliances are identified its likely that we would
probably simply include that in the consent application, rather than modifying the
design again, unless you identify any serious issues which would necessitate
changing the design..

I've attached the link to the new proposed rules. The project should be assesses
under Rules EW-R1 and EW-R2.

District Plan - Partially Operative Selwyn District Plan (Appeals Version

The Church is now wishing to lodge the application by mid-December, so would you
be in a position to deal with this promptly?

Regards,

David Mountfort


https://eplan.selwyn.govt.nz/review/rules/0/285/0/5425/0/166

